
1

Paul Robinson

From: Julian Shirley < dp9.co.uk>
Sent: 07 January 2016 12:19
To: Matt Christie
Cc: Jonathon Weston; COUGHLAN, Tony; Dutch, Claire; Quarterman, Hannah; Wood, David
Subject: The Goods Yard - Plot K / Phoenix Street Interface
Attachments: Plot K - Constraints.pdf; Amended Scheme_PL(9)1033.pdf; 201601061524.pdf

Matt 

I refer to our meeting before Christmas where we discussed the interface between the ground 
floor level of Plot K and the provision of an active frontage along the entirety of Phoenix Street. At 
the meeting, Euan commented that it should be explored as to whether the remainder of the north 
elevation could also comprise active frontage. There are a number of reasons why this is not 
possible in practice.  

Technical Constraints    

Firstly, there are a number of technical constraints associated with building over the railway line 
which make it very difficult to provide active frontage along the entirety of the north elevation of the
building. Attached is a series of diagrams and illustrative plans showing the constraints of Plot 
K.  During the design discussions on Plot K a key aspiration for the team was to try and animate 
the entire ground floor of the building with retail or business space, provided we could find a 
solution to the constraints created by the 6 lines running in and out of Liverpool Street station.  

We considered pushing Plot K towards Plots F&G and the impact this would have on the 
masterplan to allow for additional retail space on the northern side of the building. However, as 
Phoenix Street is the key servicing route into Plots F&G (including fire tenders) and an important 
new pedestrian route connecting Commercial Street and London Road, it was agreed that this 
option should not be progressed. 

Further consideration was given to creating some additional retail space at ground level by 
spanning across the railway and using the space between the gantries.  Figures 1, 2 and 3 on the 
attached document clearly show the constraints that the team faced from the gantries and the 
required airspace needed for future maintenance and access required by Network Rail. Figure 3 
(long section) shows the gantries and their impact from Commercial Street Bridge to Wheeler 
Street Bridge and as you can see, the air rights have a severe impact on where structure could be 
placed across the mainline cutting, let alone being able to create a level entrance from Phoenix 
Street. 

The western part of the Plot K only has 1 gantry constraint and this provided the team with the 
ability to successfully design retail/office space and level entrances from Phoenix street, 
Commercial Street and Quaker Street. Unfortunately, the eastern part of Plot K has 3 gantries in 
very close proximity and the creation of any additional usable space at ground floor level is not 
possible. 

Figures 4 and 5 on the attached document illustrate how the submitted scheme can work around 
these constraints and provide the best solution to animate the street level, whilst also ensuring the 
potential for a main office reception in the south-east corner of the building has the quality and 
space required for a building of this size and that it is not compromised. 

Parameter Plans and Design Guidelines 
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As shown on the attached parameter plan submitted with the planning application, the Proposed 
Ground Floor Uses Plan for Plot K would comprise a mix of business and/or retail use or B1 use at 
ground floor level fronting Phoenix Street.  These uses would provide active frontage along part of 
the north (and west) elevation of the building fronting Phoenix Street.  

Also attached are extracts from the submitted ‘Design Guidelines’ document which sets out the 
future approach to the detailed design of Plot K.  Paragraph 3.5.4.5 states that “Blank façades 
should be avoided. Areas where walls are required to form a perimeter enclosure to the railway 
line should provide opportunity for cased displays or public artwork to create interest and 
animation on the façades and adjoining streets.”   

As such, the provision of active frontage along so much of the north elevation of Plot K as is 
physically possible will be secured by approval of the parameter plan.  Given that adherence to 
the Design Guidelines will be required by a condition of the relevant planning permission, there 
will be a requirement to provide appropriate animation on any part where active uses cannot 
physically be provided, thus avoiding any blank facades.  

Furthermore, the Design Guidelines document stipulates that “Phoenix Street shall integrate 
feature perimeter lighting to the North Elevation of Plot K as well as feature lighting to the 
Highwalk above.  At Street level the special quality of Phoenix Street shall be expressed through 
the adjacent retained Braithwaite Structure. This lighting approach shall encourage a safe, active 
and enjoyable environment that fosters a sense of civic pride along Phoenix Street.” (para 
2.4.15.10).  In terms of pedestrian access, the Design Guidelines require for Plot K, “To support 
active and animated ground floor frontages, retail and commercial entrances are to be provided to 
the majority of the street elevations of the building plot, along Commercial Street, Quaker Street 
and Phoenix Street.  The entrances shall be designed as integral parts of the building and will 
provide prominent access points, taking into account wind / rain impact in the design and Secure 
by Design considerations. The location of the office entrance shown is illustrative and describes a 
strategic approach.” (para 3.5.6.3).  

It should be noted that para 43 of the GLA Update Stage 1 report (September 2015) 
acknowledges that the revised Plot K “has the significant benefit of allowing for frontage and 
activation along Phoenix Street making it a more inviting route, with a lighting scheme associated 
with the retained Braithwaite structure.”    

In summary, the provision of active frontage along part of the north elevation of Plot K fronting 
Phoenix Street would be secured through any approval of the submitted parameter plan.  The 
potential for further active uses running along the entire north elevation of Plot K have been 
explored by the design team.  However, due to the existing constraints posed by the gantries and 
the implications these have on building over the railway line, it is not possible to provide active 
uses on the north elevation at the eastern end of Plot K.  The Design Guidelines document, 
compliance with which will be required by a condition on the relevant planning permission and will 
therefore be reflected in the future reserved matters submissions, makes a commitment that there 
will be animated frontages where active frontages are not provided and as such, there will not be 
any ‘blank’ frontage on Plot K along Phoenix Street.   

Therefore, the active frontage on the north elevation at the western end of Plot K would be 
secured under the approval of the submitted parameter plan and the provision of an animated 
frontage for the remainder of the north elevation, together with a satisfactory lighting scheme for 
Phoenix Street itself will be secured by virtue of a requirement for compliance with the Design 
Guidelines document, as part of the future reserved matters application for this Plot.     

We hope the above is of assistance, but if you have any queries, please do not hesitate to contact 
me.  
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Regards 

Julian Shirley 

direct: 020 7004  
mobile: 07795  
e-mail: dp9.co.uk 

Dp9 Limited
100 Pall Mall 
London 
SW1Y 5NQ 

telephone: 020 7004 1700 facsimile: 020 7004 1790 website: www.dp9.co.uk 

This e-mail and any attachments hereto are strictly confidential and intended solely for the addressee. It may contain information which is privileged. If you 
are not the intended addressee, you must not disclose, forward, copy or take any action in relation to this e-mail or attachments. If you have received this e-
mail in error, please delete it and notify postmaster@dp9.co.uk



Fig 1. Current Photo of Plot K 



Fig 2. Current Photo of Plot K – Gantry Locations indicated 



Fig 3. Cross Section of Rail Constraints 



Fig 4. Ground Floor Plan of Plot K 



Fig 5. Ground Floor Plan of Plot K – Gantry Locations indicated 
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I’ve set out below the comparable cost of the ideas store in terms of the JV offer and the request by LBTH. As we 
don’t have any “storage area” we have assumed the 1500 sqm “storage area” comes out of the London Road units 
for the purpose of the comparable exercise. The JV maintain the position that the offer of a c4,000 sqft unit on the 
primary route through the scheme, delivered in the first phase is a deliverable compromise in the context of the 
overall scheme benefits. Clearly the request from Tower Hamlets is undeliverable;  



I trust the above covers the request for additional information as discussed yesterday. The team are working on the 
balance of the information and will revert in the new year.  

Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any additional questions.   

Regards 

Jon 

Jon Weston 

Senior Development Manager  
Ballymore Developments (UK)  
Pointe North | 3 Greenwich View Place | London E14 9NN  
Tel: +44 (0)   
Mob: +44 (0)   
email:  ballymoregroup.com  
web: www.ballymoregroup.com 
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A Summary of Development Constraints







Constraints – Subterranean 

Central Line

Suburban Line Railway Mainline Railway and 8 
Track extension

BT Tunnel



Cumulative Constraints

The above ground structures and below 
ground infrastructure limit the land 
available to lay foundations 



Additional Constraints – Strategic View Corridors

Protected Vista from King 
Henry’s Mound

Protected Vista from 
Westminster Pier





Constraints over Ground Floor Masterplan



Phase 1 Constraints





DENOTES RELEVANT BOROUGH PLANNING POLICY

Social/Intermediate Mix Unit Split Total
Suite 1 2 3 4 5

Total No of Units  87
Hab Room Per Unit 2 3 5 6 7

Social Rent Units 60% 52 7 7 30 4 4 52
Intermediate Units 40% 35 14 15 6 35

Total Affordable Hab Room Count 42 66 180 24 28 340
Hab Rooms as a % 12% 19% 53% 7% 8%

Total Affordable Offside Units 21 22 36 4 4 87
Total Units as a % 24% 25% 41% 5% 5%

LBTH TOTAL Suite 1 2 3 4 5 Total

Total Units 79 271 286 121 13 4 774

Hab Room Per Unit 1 2 3 5 6 7

Total LBTH Hab Room 79 542 858 605 78 28 2190

Social 70% (by hab room) By Hab Room 30 84 190 48 28 380

Intermediate 30% (by hab room) By Hab Room 28 60 70 0 0 158

Total Affordable Housing by Hab Room 58 144 260 48 28 538
Hab Rooms as a % 11% 27% 48% 9% 5%

Social By Unit 15 28 38 8 4 93

Intermediate By Unit 14 20 14 0 0 48

Total Affordable Housing by Unit 29 48 52 8 4 141
Total Units as a % 21% 34% 37% 6% 3%

Total % of Total On Site Provision (in
accordance with LBH PiL policy)

Total Affordable Housing by Hab Room 100 210 440 72 56 878 3586 24%
Total Affordable Housing by Unit 50 70 88 12 8 228 1356 17%

Total Affordable Housing delivered ONSITE as a % of Total Unit Numbers Affordable Housing as a % of total units onsite by Hab Room 15.00% 538 of 3586 HR
Affordable Housing as a % of total units onsite by Unit 10.40% 141 of 1356 Units

Plot C 12 Affordable Units Intermediate
Plot D 26 Affordable Units Intermediate/Social 
Plot E 103 Affordable Units Intermediate/Social 

HACKNEY

TOWER HAMLETS

Hackney PiL Policy  Social Rent 3 bed +  42% for the purposes of this exercise we have assumed 50% of provision is 3bed +

15% Off Site Affordable Housing Payment - equal to 87.3 units

Unit Type

LBH Policy; the financial contribution agreed should be equivalent to the total cost required to provide an equal amount of affordable housing on an alternative site as would 
have been sought on the principle site’
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From: Pascal Levine [mailto @DS2.co.uk]  
Sent: 03 December 2015 10:37 
To: John Lumley 
Subject: off‐site contributions 

John 

Further to our meeting on 10 August 2015 we have been using £250k per habitable room as a payment for  off‐site 
housing (to assist in funding the Council’s delivery programme ‘round two’).  We’ve been keeping an eye on 
committee reports with the most recent being One Crown Place at £210k per unit (July 2015). 

Can you confirm that the £250k figure remains relevant for the modelling that we are undertaking, thanks. 

Happy to discuss if that’s easier. 

Kind regards 

Pascal Levine MRICS 
Partner 

 

  

DS2 LLP 
100 Pall Mall, London  
SW1Y 5NQ 
website: www.ds2.co.uk  

This email is sent on behalf of DS2 LLP ('the firm'), a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales (no OC372219). A list of the members of the 
firm may be inspected at its registered office, 100 Pall Mall, London SW1Y 5NQ.

The firm contracts on its terms of business, which may be read at www.ds2.co.uk. No personal liability is assumed by the sender of this email. Emails sent or 
received may be monitored to ensure compliance with the law and the firm's policies. Although this email (as well as any attachments) has been scanned for 
viruses, the recipient should ensure that it is virus‐free before opening it. This e‐mail and any attachments hereto are strictly confidential and intended solely for 
the addressee. If you are not the intended addressee, you must not disclose, forward, copy or take any action in relation to this e‐mail or attachments. If you 
have received this e‐mail in error, please delete it and notify postmaster@ds2.co.uk
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Paul Robinson

From: Matt Christie
Sent: 18 December 2015 17:15
To: 'Julian Shirley'
Cc: Justin Carr; Colin Wilson
Subject: PPA
Attachments: BGGY_PPA_draft_15DEC2015.doc

Julian, 
 
Attached is the draft PPA I’ve been passing around the GLA for a month or so. I now have a full set of quotes and 
have instructed GVA, GE and LUC so the estimates in appendix C are up to date. Could you please consider it at your 
end and let me have any tracks.  
 
I’m around all next week if you need to discuss 
 
Thanks 
 
 
Matt Christie| Senior Strategic Planner and Urban Designer| Development & Projects  

Greater London Authority | City Hall, The Queen's Walk, More London Riverside, London SE1 2AA 

Tel: 020 7983   Email:  london.gov.uk 
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Paul Robinson

From: Jonathon Weston < ballymoregroup.com>
Sent: 17 December 2015 11:15
To: Matt Christie
Cc: Julian Shirley; COUGHLAN, Tony
Subject: The Goodsyard
Attachments: Affordable Housing Offer by HR and Unit 171215.xlsx

Importance: High

Matt 
 
Further to recent discussions, please find attached a table that details the following; 
 

1. Proposed breakdown of the onsite affordable housing units in Tower Hamlets. This is a policy compliant 
offer in terms of mix with a split of 70/30 by habitable rooms onsite being Social Rent units. Of the units to 
be delivered 45%+ are 3 bed or above as per the LBTH policy.  

2. An indication of what the £250k per unit payment to Hackney will deliver in terms of unit/hab rooms offsite. 
Hackney’s policy is not very detailed with the only guidance being that 42% of the affordable rent program 
should be 3 bedroom +. For the purposes of our worked example, we have assumed 50% will be delivered as 
3 bed +  

 
By adopted the assumptions in the table for Hackney, along with the policy compliant Tower Hamlets Mix (providing 
bigger affordable units), the scheme will deliver an overall Affordable Housing mix of 24% by hab room (against the 
1356 on site units) with 47% of the units (by unit count) being 3 bedroom +. This equates to 17% by unit.  
 
Clearly the assumptions of Hackney are subject to the Boroughs ability to deliver the mix assumed but the JV believe 
that the methodology used is in accordance with the LBH Housing SPG guidance. 
 
I trust this provides an extra layer of clarity on our revised offer and Tony and I are happy to discuss further as 
required 
 
Regards 
 
Jon Weston 
 
Senior Development Manager  
Ballymore Developments (UK)  
Pointe North | 3 Greenwich View Place | London E14 9NN  

 
email:  ballymoregroup.com  
web: www.ballymoregroup.com 
 
 
 
 
 

This email is sent on behalf of Roundstone Development Management Limited (registered number: 08874050) and 
Roundstone Construction Services Limited (registered number: 09066749), limited companies registered in England 
and Wales, each with registered office at Pointe North, 3 Greenwich View Place, London E14 9NN. The companies 
are not affiliated to the Ballymore Group. The name "BALLYMORE" and the Ballymore logos are registered trade 
marks of Ballymore Properties and used by the companies under licence. The contents of this e-mail and any 
attachments are confidential to the intended recipient. If you are not the intended recipient, please (i) do not use or 
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Paul Robinson

From: Matt Christie
Sent: 16 December 2015 16:27
To: 'Julian Shirley'
Subject: Goodsyard

Hi Julian, 
 
I sat down with our Energy team this afternoon and discussed the scheme. Below is their response to your last 
position, however, you should hold off on responding to this until our air quality consultant has had a chance to 
consider the scheme in light of the LPAs reports. The approach to ameliorating the energy issue is inseparably linked 
to the energy strategy for the site. I.e. the need to meet the NOX emission limits may mean they need to have three 
smaller energy centres as they wouldn’t have the space for a single larger centre with Nox reduction measures 
(which I understand take up a lot of space). Once I have comments back from air quality I will get back to you‐ I 
suggest we then take a few days to digest them and set up a meeting to discuss ways forward, as well as relevant 
s106 clauses and conditions. 
 
I hope that makes sense‐ let me know if you need to discuss 
 
 
Matt 
 
 
The demand for cooling would be minimised through the provision of openable windows.  The applicant has 
committed to ensuring that the detailed design would meet criterion 3 of Part L 2010 on high summer 
temperatures.  Full details of how this would be achieved should be provided.  The dwellings are proposed to have 
solar control glazing but also active cooling.  Given the scale of the development, the applicant should set clear 
design guidelines and targets on passive design features to be included in the detailed design of phases to ensure 
the cooling hierarchy in London Plan Policy 5.9 has been addressed.  It is recommended that dynamic thermal 
modelling is used to set these guidelines.  The application should also demonstrate that future climate projections 
are considered to ensure that the development is future proofed (please refer to CIBSE TM49 and TM52). 
 
The applicant has provided the SAP compliance sheets demonstrating that there is a slight risk of overheating. 
This is under the assumption that the windows can be opened at all times and that if this is not the case then the 
comfort cooled. The applicant should follow the cooling hierarchy with the overheating analysis demonstrating 
that there is no significant risk of overheating without reliance on mechanical cooling. The applicant should 
therefore provide Part L compliance data sheets of the sample dwellings with ventilation restrictions (due to 
noise, security etc.) to demonstrate that there is only a slight risk of high summer temperatures. If the modelling 
outputs show a medium risk, further passive measures in line with Policy 5.9 should be integrated to reduce the 
risk of overheating. As outlined above dynamic thermal modelling, including for future climate projections, is 
recommended to demonstrate compliance with the cooling hierarchy.   
 
The applicant has provided additional sample SAP sheets. The compliance check sheets provided show that the vast 
majority of units are predicted to be at a ‘medium’ risk of overheating at some point. The applicant has stated that a 
‘medium’ risk meets the Part L requirements and has not investigated any additional measures. Whilst it may be the 
case that a ‘medium’ risk satisfies Part L requirements it is not considered sufficient evidence to demonstrate 
compliance with Policy 5.9. The applicant should therefore integrate additional passive measures to those dwelling 
types which are likely to have a higher risk of overheating. The applicant should provide updated compliance sheets 
to demonstrate that the risk of overheating has been reduced, any additional measures should be detailed in the 
response. 
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117         The ‘clean’ stage has been addressed by the application in relation to district heating, heat networks and 
CHP.  In relation to district heating, the applicant has identified that Citigen district heating network is in close 
proximity to the site.  While the site is too far away to make a connection to this network at this point, the 
applicant has committed to ensuring the development allows for future connection should a new network become 
available.  Further details should be provided of how this would be achieved in practice (i.e. location of space 
safeguarded for heat exchangers and pip runs connecting to a wider network). 
 
The applicant has provided plans of the energy centres including the potential future connection point, however 
due to the quality of the drawings it is unclear what provisions have been made internally in the energy centres 
for a future connection. The applicant should provide drawings demonstrating the provisions made for a future 
connection (e.g. space for heat exchangers). 
 
The applicant has stated that space provision will be made for plate heat exchanger, meters, secondary circulating 
pumps and the necessary ancillaries to connect to the district heating 
network. The applicant has also stated that plans can be provided, these should be provided.  
 
 
 
118         The site heat network is welcomed.  Confirmation should be provided that all apartments and non‐
domestic building uses would be connected to the network. 
 
No confirmation has been included in the revised energy statement. This item remains outstanding.  
 
The applicant has confirmed that all dwellings and building uses will be connected to the site wide network. No 
further information is required. 
 
 
 
119         Three energy centres are proposed to be included on site that would be linked together.  Further 
information is required on the phasing schedule for the development to justify this approach.  The applicant 
should investigate the possibility of making energy centre 2 the main centre for the whole development, with 
temporary boilers installed to serve phase 1 in the interim.   
 
& 
120         The proposal includes the installation of three CHP engines (with the capacity of 200 kWe, 275 kWe and 
150 kWe) in each of the energy centres.  They would meet the domestic hot water load and a proportion of space 
heating.  This would achieve a reduction in regulated CO2 emissions of 650 tonnes (22%) per annum.  In line with 
the investigation of one ‘main’ energy centre, the applicant should consider consolidating the number of CHP 
engines in the interest of optimising plant efficiency and carbon savings in the long term as well as facilitating 
retrofit of district heating connections in the future.  This could include utilising gas boilers in the first phases until 
enough demand is established through the phasing of the development. 
 
The applicant has not provided any further information to demonstrate that the potential for Energy Centre 2 
becoming the main single energy centre has been investigated. This above information request remains 
outstanding and should be provided.  
 
The applicant has stated that numerous options for the energy centre were considered, including a single energy 
Centre located under Blocks E or F/G. The applicant has also stated that sketches of the potential single energy 
centres can be made available upon request. However, no detailed information has been provided to demonstrate 
that the opportunity for a single energy centre has been thoroughly investigated. The applicant should therefore 
provide further information on the single energy centres investigated for Block E and F/G including, the energy 
centre sketches mentioned and the phasing timescales (as requested above) so that the potential for a single energy 
centre can be better understood.  
 
Given that the site is currently short of meeting the carbon emission target, the applicant should investigate 
installing a singer higher efficiency CHP engine (as requested above) in order to maximise the onsite carbon savings. 
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Under this scenario the applicant should utilise gas boilers in the initial phases with a single CHP installed when 
sufficient load is established in the later phases. 
 
 
 
122         Overall, the carbon emissions savings would result in an overall carbon saving of 1275 tonnes per 
year.  This would be equivalent to a saving of 35% against 2010 Building Regulations.  These emissions should be 
reassessed under Part L 2013 to assess the scheme against London Plan Policy 5.2 targets. 
 
The applicant has reassessed the site wide carbon emission using the Part L 2013 methodology. The reduction is 
estimated to be a 27% savings from a Part L 2013 baseline. No further information is required. 
 
The savings of 27% over Part L 2013 in relation on‐site carbon dioxide savings fall short of the targets within Policy 
5.2 of the London Plan. The applicant should ensure the shortfall in target carbon dioxide reductions, currently 
equivalent to 398 tonnes of CO2 per annum (to reach the London Plan’s 35% reduction) be offset through payment 
in‐lieu secured through the section 106 agreement.  
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